
 
 

HATFIELD TOWNSHIP BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

DECEMBER 16, 2020  

7:30 PM 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER  

II. ROLL CALL 

 

❑ COMMISSIONER PRESIDENT ZIPFEL 

❑ COMMISSIONER VICE PRESIDENT RODGERS 

❑ COMMISSIONER ANDRIS 

❑ COMMISSIONER LEES 

❑ COMMISSIONER ZIMMERMAN 

 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

IV. APROVAL OF AGENDA 

V.        CITIZENS’ COMMENTS – AGENDA ITEMS ONLY 

 

Attention: Board of Commissioner Meetings are Video Recorded  

All comments made at the podium.  Please state your name and address for the record.  

Comments are guided by Resolution #10-10. 

 
VI. CONSENT ITEMS 

 
A. Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting Minutes – November 18, 2020  
B.   Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting Minutes – November 4, 2020  
C. Police Report – November  
D.   Treasurer’s Report – December  

 E.   Bills Payable: 
  A. Paid Bills – $0 
  B. Unpaid Bills – $423,735.04 
SPECIAL ITEM 

 

A.  Recognition of John Strobel for 19 years of service on the North Penn Water                                                                                      

Authority Board  

 

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

A.  Planning and Zoning Committee – Vice President Rodgers 

 

   1.  Sewer Lateral Inspection Ordinance – Continued Discussion  

   Pete Dorney, Executive Director, HTMA 

   Paul Mullin, Solicitor, HTMA  

 



 

 2 

  2.  2801 Township Line Road Land Development Discussion  

 

  3.  Pulte Homes Land Development – Final Approval Discussion  

         

B.  Public Works Committee – Commissioner Lees  

 

 1.  Cowpath and Orvilla Project – Payment #6 and #7 

      Motion to Approve $243,210.96 to Blooming Glen Contractors, Inc.   

  

C. Parks and Recreation Committee – Commissioner Zimmerman  

 

D.  Public Safety Committee –President Zipfel 

  

 E.  Finance Committee – Commissioner Andris 

     

VIII. ACTION ITEMS 

 

1.  2801 Township Line Road Land Development  

 Resolution #20-26 

 Motion for Approval  

 

2.  Pulte Homes Land Development Final Approval 

 Resolution #20-27 

 Motion for Approval  

 

3.  2021 Hatfield Township Budget Adoption  

Ordinance #693 

Motion for Approval  

 
4.  Establishment of 2021 Taxes – No Increase   

Ordinance #694 

Motion for Approval    

 

 5.   Volunteer Board Appointments – Attached  

  Motion for Approval  

 

IX.  TOWNSHIP STAFF REPORTS 

 

 1.  ARLE Grant Award - $300,000 

 

 2.  Trail Maintenance Agreement – 309 Connector Road  

      Resolution #20-28 

      Motion for Approval  

 

X.  SOLICITOR’S REPORT 

 1.  Real Estate Tax Appeal Settlement Agreement  

       Motion for Approval  

 

XI. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS 

XII.   ADJOURNMENT 



HATFIELD TOWNSHIP BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

November 18, 2020 

7:30 PM 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  

 

President Zipfel called the Hatfield Township Board of Commissioners November 18, 

2020 meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 

 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

President Tom Zipfel asked Mr. Bibro to call the roll.  Present at the meeting were 

President Tom Zipfel, Vice President Bob Rodgers, Commissioner Jerry Andris, 

Commissioner Greg Lees and Commissioner Deborah Zimmerman.  Also in attendance 

were Township Manager Aaron Bibro, Solicitor John Iannozzi, Township Planner Ken 

Amey and Township Engineer Bryan McAdam.   

 

 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

Mr. Iannozzi led the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance.   

 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

Commissioner Vice President Rodgers made a motion to approve the Agenda and 

Commissioner Andris seconded the motion.  The motion passed with a 5-0 vote. 

 
 

 V. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS  

 

 There were no citizens’ comments.  

 
 
VI. CONSENT ITEMS 

 

Commissioner Lees made a motion to approve the Consent Items listed below. 

Commissioner Andris seconded the motion and the motion passed with a 5-0 vote. 

 

Prior to the action items, Commissioner President Zipfel commended BAPS and The 

Hague’s for their recent food drive contributions in the township. 

 



November 18, 2020 

 2 

  

VII. ACTION ITEMS 

 

1.  3120 Penn Street – Land Development Approval Extension  

 Resolution #20-27 

 

Commissioner Andris made a motion to approve Resolution #20-27. 

Commissioner Vice President Rodgers seconded the motion and the motion 

passed with a 5-0 vote. 

 

2.  Resurfacing Pickleball Courts - Top-A-Court LLC - $76,232 (as budgeted)  

 

Commissioner Zimmerman made a motion to approve the resurfacing of the 

pickleball courts. Commissioner Lees seconded the motion and the motion passed 

with a 5-0 vote. 

 

3.  Parking Restrictions – Orvilla Road (From Snyder Square Drive to Tarrington 

Way) and Forrest Hills Drive 

Ordinance #693 

 

Commissioner Andris made a motion to approve Ordinance #693. Commissioner 

Vice President Rodgers seconded the motion and the motion passed with a 5-0 

vote.  

 

 4.  Comprehensive Physical Evaluations – Volunteer Fire Companies  

  Professional Health Services Inc - $28,400 (from fire reserve fund) 

   

Commissioner Lees made a motion to approve comprehensive physical 

evaluations for members of the volunteer fire companies. Commissioner Vice 

President Rodgers seconded the motion and the motion passed with a 5-0 vote. 

 

 5.  North Penn Health Hospital and Education Authority 

  Salus University Refinance (No Liability or cost to Hatfield Township) 

  Resolution #20-28 

 

Commissioner Vice President Rodgers made a motion to approve Resolution #20-

28. Commissioner Andris seconded the motion and the motion passed with a 5-0 

vote. 

 

 6.  Presentation of the 2021 Draft Budget – No Tax Increase (7th straight year)  

 
Commissioner Andris made a motion to advertise ordinances for budget adoption 
and maintaining tax rates for 2021. Commissioner Vice President Rodgers 
seconded the motion and the motion passed with a 5-0 vote. 
 
 

 

 



November 18, 2020 

 3 

VIII. CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 

 Bill Leisner, 1556 Schwab Rd 

Mr. Leisner offered comments regarding the cancellation of the tree lighting ceremony in 

Hatfield Borough this year. 

 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Commissioner Andris motioned for adjournment and Commissioner Lees seconded the 

motion. The motion passed with a 5-0 vote and the meeting adjourned at 8:12 P.M.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HATFIELD TOWNSHIP BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

November 4, 2020 

7:30 PM 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  

 

President Zipfel called the Hatfield Township Board of Commissioners November 4, 

2020 meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 

 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

President Tom Zipfel asked Mr. Bibro to call the roll.  Present at the meeting were 

President Tom Zipfel, Vice President Bob Rodgers, Commissioner Jerry Andris, 

Commissioner Greg Lees and Commissioner Deborah Zimmerman.  Also in attendance 

were Township Manager Aaron Bibro, Solicitor John Iannozzi, Township Planner Ken 

Amey, Township Engineer Bryan McAdam and Chief of Police William Tierney.   

 

 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

Dean Mininger of the Hatfield Fire Company led the recitation of the Pledge of 

Allegiance.   

 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

Commissioner Lees made a motion to approve the Agenda and Commissioner Andris 

seconded the motion.  The motion passed with a 5-0 vote. 

 
 

 V. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS  

 

 There were no citizens’ comments.  

 
 
VI. CONSENT ITEMS 

 

Commissioner Zimmerman made a motion to approve the Consent Items listed below. 

Commissioner Vice President Rodgers seconded the motion and the motion passed with a 

5-0 vote. 

 

A. Police Report – September 

 



November 4, 2020 

 2 

  

  

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

A. Planning and Zoning Committee – Vice President Rodgers 

 

1.  2801 Township Line Road - Land Development Discussion  

 

Mr. Amey discussed the land development project located at 2801 Township Line 

Road. Mr. Amey answered questions from the Board. Additionally, Amy Farrell, 

an attorney with Kaplan-Stewart provided information and answered questions 

from the Board.  It was agreed that the item would be moved to next meeting’s 

agenda.  

 

 

                        2.  3120 Penn Street – Land Development Approval Extension Discussion  

 

Mr. Amey discussed the land development project located at 3120 Penn Street. 

Mr. Amey answered questions from the Board. It was agreed that the item would 

be moved to next meeting’s agenda.  
 

B. Public Works Committee – Commissioner Lees 

 

There were no items.  

 

C. Parks and Recreation Committee – Commissioner Zimmerman 

 

Commissioner Zimmerman discussed some current and upcoming parks and 

recreation events in the township. Commissioner Zimmerman also advised that 

the pickleball courts will be resurfaced. 

 

D. Public Safety Committee –President Zipfel 

 

1.  Mr. Bibro discussed no parking signage along Orvilla Road in the vicinity of 

the Giant shopping center. After discussion among the Board, Commissioner 

President Zipfel made a motion to advertise an ordinance regarding no parking 

signage. Commissioner Vice President Rodgers seconded the motion and the 

motion passed with a 5-0 vote. 

 

The Board discussed modifying parking regulations on Forest Hills Drive. 

Commissioner Andris made a motion to advertise an ordinance regarding a 

modification to parking regulations on Forest Hills Drive. Commissioner Lees 

seconded the motion and the motion passed with a 5-0 vote. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



November 4, 2020 

 3 

 

2. Physical Exams – Volunteer Fire Companies   

 

Dean Mininger shared information with the Board regarding physical exams for 

the volunteer fire companies, however much of his information was inaudible. 

 

E. Finance Committee – Commissioner Andris 

 

Commissioner Andris that there will be a Budget Presentation on November 18th 

and there will be no tax increase. 

 

 

VIII. TOWNSHIP STAFF REPORTS 

 

A. Township Manager’s Report 

 

Mr. Bibro discussed the following topics and answered questions from the 

Board: 

 

1.  North Penn Health, Hospital and Education Authority Project 

 

2.  Sewer Lateral Inspection Continued Discussion – Dec 16th  

 

3.  Grant Announcement – Hatfield Volunteer Fire Company 

 

 

IX. SOLICITOR’S REPORT 

 

 There was no solicitor’s report. 

 

   

X. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS 

 

There were no citizens’ comments. 

 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Commissioner Lees motioned for adjournment and Commissioner Vice President 

Rodgers seconded the motion. The motion passed with a 5-0 vote and the meeting 

adjourned at 8:17 P.M.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                                                  
                                                                

                                                
  
  
 
 

                                     Hatfield Township        
                         Police Activity Report 
 
 

The timeframe for this report is 11/01/20 – 11/30/20 
 

  
(2206) Incidents were handled by Officers 
  
(118) Selective Enforcements were conducted 
 
(7) Non -Traffic** arrests were made 
 
(240) Traffic Citations were issued 
 
(20) Parking Tickets were issued 
 
(95) Traffic Courtesy/ Warnings Notices were issued 
 
(689) Night Eyes/ Business checks/Directed Patrols were conducted 
 
(18) Criminal* Arrests were made 
 

(3) DUI 
 

(0) DUI’s w/Accident 
 
(19) Thefts were reported 
 



 
 
 
 
 
Addendum: 
 

*Criminal Arrests involved the following charges:   Burglary, 
Criminal Trespass,  DUI, Drug Possession,  Receiving Stolen 
Property, Retail Theft,  Theft By Unlawful Taking, PFA Violation, 
Unauthorized Use Of Motor Vehicle,  Warrant Service. 
 
** Non-Criminal arrests were made for:    Criminal Mischief, 
Disorderly Conduct, Harboring Dangerous Dog, Public Drunkenness, 
and Retail Theft. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                  
 
 
 
 



 Hatfield Twp - General Fund

 Treasury Report
 As of November 30, 2020

Fund Number Fund Name Beginning Balance Ending Balance

1 General Fund 744,157.26 1,142,653.61

Univest Money Market 1,541,206.05 1,541,206.05

2 General Fund Reserve 700,000.00 700,000.00

3 Fire Fund 52,615.08 52,994.82

4 Fire Capital Fund 646,848.25 646,848.25

5 Act 209 Impact Fund 263,899.37 241,017.08

6 Debt Service Fund 910,809.54 904,591.37

14 Capital Fund 220,424.39 124,626.00

15 Community Pool Fund 4,426.99 2,410.16

16 Pool Reserves 11,870.98 11,870.98

18 Park and Recreation Fund 83,749.39 63,792.06

19 Park and Recreation Capital Fund 237,276.08 232,410.21

35 Liquid Fuels Fund 436,368.47 436,368.47

36 Contribution Fund (Recycling, Tree, Open Space)1,042,259.43 1,031,019.69

37 Escrow 732,751.04 669,413.70

Total Funds Under Township Management 7,628,662.32 7,801,222.45

Type Date Memo Debit Credit Balance

Beginning 

Balance 744,157.26  

Payment 11/05/2020 96,282.55  840,439.81  

Payment 11/05/2020 100,000.00  940,439.81  

Deposit 11/05/2020 LST 44,405.89  984,845.70  

Deposit 11/05/2020 LST 478.95  985,324.65  

Deposit 11/05/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 5,105.66  990,430.31  

Deposit 11/05/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 10,994.98  1,001,425.29  

Deposit 11/05/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 11,313.23  1,012,738.52  

Deposit 11/05/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 7,258.06  1,019,996.58  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/06/2020 550.00  1,019,446.58  

Deposit 11/06/2020 49,404.74  1,068,851.32  

Journal Entry 11/10/2020 VISA - Polic Cap 1,199.89  1,070,051.21  

Journal Entry 11/10/2020 Credit 225,163.80  844,887.41  

Journal Entry 11/10/2020 Visa -  Pool 124.83  845,012.24  

Journal Entry 11/10/2020 debit 1,846.15  846,858.39  

Journal Entry 11/10/2020 Visa - Parks Rec 456.00  847,314.39  

Journal Entry 11/10/2020

Credit - debt 

Service RE tax 

transfer 425.05  846,889.34  

Journal Entry 11/10/2020

Debit Tina 

monthly taxes 3,214.86  850,104.20  

Journal Entry 11/10/2020

Credit - transfer 

to Fire RE tax 

transfer 379.74  849,724.46  

Overview of Total Funds Under Township Management

General Fund - Fund 01

 Page 1 of 10



 Hatfield Twp - General Fund

 Treasury Report
 As of November 30, 2020

Journal Entry 11/10/2020

Credit to Parks 

Rect RE tax 

Transfer 134.78  849,589.68  

Deposit 11/12/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 10,706.39  860,296.07  

Deposit 11/12/2020 LST 12,759.73  873,055.80  

Deposit 11/12/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 34,564.91  907,620.71  

Deposit 11/12/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 27,492.53  935,113.24  

Deposit 11/12/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 69,513.81  1,004,627.05  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 4,890.00  999,737.05  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 333.21  999,403.84  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 18.98  999,384.86  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 607.72  998,777.14  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 1,090.90  997,686.24  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 Voided 0.00  997,686.24  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 128.68  997,557.56  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 123.42  997,434.14  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 947.30  996,486.84  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 912.94  995,573.90  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 1,500.00  994,073.90  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 68.96  994,004.94  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 350.00  993,654.94  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 101.74  993,553.20  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 165.00  993,388.20  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 220.00  993,168.20  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 1,085.10  992,083.10  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 540.00  991,543.10  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 88.44  991,454.66  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 8,010.52  983,444.14  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 77.27  983,366.87  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 3,500.00  979,866.87  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 84.60  979,782.27  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 68.00  979,714.27  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 55.00  979,659.27  

 Page 2 of 10



 Hatfield Twp - General Fund

 Treasury Report
 As of November 30, 2020

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 658.91  979,000.36  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 100,418.76  878,581.60  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 120.00  878,461.60  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 372.40  878,089.20  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 600.00  877,489.20  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 1,560.00  875,929.20  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 446.30  875,482.90  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 4,513.00  870,969.90  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 2,481.39  868,488.51  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 142.00  868,346.51  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 149.00  868,197.51  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 339.63  867,857.88  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 2,164.31  865,693.57  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 1,025.04  864,668.53  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 15,511.00  849,157.53  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 207.90  848,949.63  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 3,683.55  845,266.08  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 755.00  844,511.08  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 2,564.00  841,947.08  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 400.00  841,547.08  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 118.95  841,428.13  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 6,715.00  834,713.13  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 1,550.00  833,163.13  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 9,019.00  824,144.13  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 1,350.00  822,794.13  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 99.00  822,695.13  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 380.99  822,314.14  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 350.00  821,964.14  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 371.50  821,592.64  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 10,073.30  811,519.34  

 Page 3 of 10



 Hatfield Twp - General Fund

 Treasury Report
 As of November 30, 2020

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 323.94  811,195.40  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 2,496.46  808,698.94  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 1,677.24  807,021.70  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 425.33  806,596.37  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 990.00  805,606.37  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 7.45  805,598.92  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 1,416.73  804,182.19  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 176.32  804,005.87  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 83.30  803,922.57  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 7,741.24  796,181.33  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 3,746.05  792,435.28  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 1,319.96  791,115.32  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 230.00  790,885.32  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 200.00  790,685.32  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 213.84  790,471.48  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 26.46  790,445.02  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 891.14  789,553.88  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 2,952.00  786,601.88  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 2,736.29  783,865.59  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 238.53  783,627.06  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 1,105.70  782,521.36  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 324.87  782,196.49  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 30.00  782,166.49  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 12.31  782,154.18  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 2,456.30  779,697.88  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 5,833.00  773,864.88  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 2,373.18  771,491.70  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 1,467.37  770,024.33  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 0.84  770,023.49  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 978.27  769,045.22  

 Page 4 of 10



 Hatfield Twp - General Fund

 Treasury Report
 As of November 30, 2020

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 50.00  768,995.22  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 11.62  768,983.60  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 479.40  768,504.20  

Deposit 11/17/2020 71,909.14  840,413.34  

Payment 11/18/2020 81.00  840,494.34  

Payment 11/18/2020 143.50  840,637.84  

Payment 11/18/2020 80.00  840,717.84  

Payment 11/18/2020 143.50  840,861.34  

Payment 11/18/2020 206.00  841,067.34  

Payment 11/18/2020 81.00  841,148.34  

Payment 11/18/2020 1,526.23  842,674.57  

Payment 11/18/2020 81.00  842,755.57  

Deposit 11/18/2020 792.95  843,548.52  

Deposit 11/18/2020 53,589.29  897,137.81  

Deposit 11/19/2020 1,388.48  898,526.29  

Deposit 11/19/2020 LST 1,284.92  899,811.21  

Deposit 11/19/2020 LST 17,926.49  917,737.70  

Deposit 11/19/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 65,771.14  983,508.84  

Deposit 11/19/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 34,581.45  1,018,090.29  

Deposit 11/19/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 28,971.28  1,047,061.57  

Deposit 11/19/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 13,507.88  1,060,569.45  

Deposit 11/19/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 90,313.70  1,150,883.15  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/23/2020 250.00  1,150,633.15  

Journal Entry 11/24/2020 Credit 207,777.61  942,855.54  

Journal Entry 11/24/2020 debit 1,846.15  944,701.69  

Deposit 11/24/2020 6,989.88  951,691.57  

Deposit 11/30/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 43,539.37  995,230.94  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/30/2020 640.00  994,590.94  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/30/2020 160.00  994,430.94  

Journal Entry 11/30/2020 sept correction 3,935.00  990,495.94  

Journal Entry 11/30/2020 Quickbooks 74.20  990,421.74  

Journal Entry 11/30/2020 TD CC 11,728.23  978,693.51  

Journal Entry 11/30/2020 32.55  978,726.06  

Journal Entry 11/30/2020 32.55  978,758.61  

Journal Entry 11/30/2020 1,041.51  979,800.12  

Journal Entry 11/30/2020 1,041.51  980,841.63  

Deposit 11/30/2020 Interest Earned 598.34  981,439.97  

Deposit 11/30/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 2,407.06  983,847.03  

Deposit 11/30/2020 LST 4,650.99  988,498.02  

Deposit 11/30/2020 LST 15,817.84  1,004,315.86  

Deposit 11/30/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 18,937.74  1,023,253.60  

Deposit 11/30/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 22,167.27  1,045,420.87  

Deposit 11/30/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 22,818.23  1,068,239.10  

 Page 5 of 10



 Hatfield Twp - General Fund

 Treasury Report
 As of November 30, 2020

Deposit 11/30/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 30,439.51  1,098,678.61  

Deposit 11/30/2020 EIT -Berkhieimer 44,535.00  1,143,213.61  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/30/2020 560.00  1,142,653.61  

Ending Balance $   1,086,397.61  $      687,901.26  1,142,653.61  

Type Date Memo Debit Credit Balance

Beginning 

Balance 1,541,206.05  

Ending Balance 1,541,206.05  

Type Date Memo Debit Credit Balance

Opening Balance 700,000.00

700,000.00

Ending Balance 700,000.00

Type Date Num Debit Credit Balance

Opening Balance 52,615.08

Deposit 11/10/2020 379.74 52,994.82

Ending Balance 379.74 0.00 52,994.82

Type Date Num Debit Credit Balance

Opening Balance 646,848.25

646,848.25

Ending Balance 646,848.25

Type Date Debit Credit Balance

Opening Balance 263,899.37

Bill Pmt -Check 11/16/2020 41,137.33 222,762.04

Deposit 11/18/2020 18,255.04 241,017.08

Ending Balance 18,255.04 41,137.33 241,017.08

Fire Reserve Fund - Fund 04

Act 209 Fund - Fund 05

General Fund Univest Money Market

General Fund Reserves - Fund 02

Fire Fund - Fund 03

 Page 6 of 10



 Hatfield Twp - General Fund

 Treasury Report
 As of November 30, 2020

Type Date Debit Credit Balance

Opening Balance 910,809.54

Deposit 11/10/2020 425.05 911,234.59

Bill Pmt -Check 11/12/2020 1,116.88 910,117.71

Bill Pmt -Check 11/12/2020 272.71 909,845.00

Bill Pmt -Check 11/12/2020 904.00 908,941.00

Bill Pmt -Check 11/12/2020 1,092.15 907,848.85

Bill Pmt -Check 11/12/2020 1,231.57 906,617.28

Bill Pmt -Check 11/12/2020 1,309.64 905,307.64

Bill Pmt -Check 11/12/2020 716.27 904,591.37

Ending Balance 425.05 6,643.22 904,591.37

Type Date Debit Credit Balance

Beginning 

Balance 220,424.39  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/10/2020 1,199.89  219,224.50  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 15,029.50  204,195.00  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 79,569.00  124,626.00  

Ending Balance $        95,798.39  124,626.00  

Type Date Debit Credit Balance

Beginning 

Balance 4,426.99  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/10/2020 456.00  3,970.99  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 398.29  3,572.70  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 335.00  3,237.70  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 311.20  2,926.50  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 650.55  2,275.95  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 26.52  2,249.43  

Deposit 11/17/2020 175.00  2,424.43  

Journal Entry 11/30/2020 123.00  2,301.43  

Journal Entry 11/30/2020 23.77  2,277.66  

Journal Entry 11/30/2020 17.50  2,260.16  

Deposit 11/30/2020 150.00  2,410.16  

Ending Balance $            325.00  $          2,341.83  2,410.16  

Debt Service Fund - Fund 06

Captial Reserve Fund - Fund 14

Community Pool Fund - Fund 15

 Page 7 of 10



 Hatfield Twp - General Fund

 Treasury Report
 As of November 30, 2020

Type Date Debit Credit Balance

Opening Balance 11,870.98

11,870.98

Ending Balance 11,870.98

Type Date Debit Credit Balance

Beginning 

Balance 83,749.39  

Journal Entry 11/10/2020 4,133.76  79,615.63  

Deposit 11/10/2020 134.78  79,750.41  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/10/2020 124.83  79,625.58  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 90.00  79,535.58  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 247.50  79,288.08  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 44.99  79,243.09  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 137.25  79,105.84  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 40.00  79,065.84  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 264.00  78,801.84  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 40.00  78,761.84  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 819.46  77,942.38  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 91.62  77,850.76  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 23.04  77,827.72  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 1,377.42  76,450.30  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 80.00  76,370.30  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 4,413.00  71,957.30  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 3,750.00  68,207.30  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 207.28  68,000.02  

Journal Entry 11/24/2020 4,133.76  63,866.26  

Journal Entry 11/30/2020 Quickbooks 74.20  63,792.06  

Ending Balance $            134.78  $        20,092.11  63,792.06  

Pool Reserve Fund - Fund 16

Park & Recreation Fund - Fund 18

 Page 8 of 10



 Hatfield Twp - General Fund

 Treasury Report
 As of November 30, 2020

Type Date Debit Credit Balance

Opening Balance 237,276.08

Bill Pmt -Check 11/16/2020 1,439.00 235,837.08

Bill Pmt -Check 11/16/2020 2,576.25 233,260.83

Bill Pmt -Check 11/16/2020 850.62 232,410.21

Ending Balance 0.00 4,865.87 232,410.21

Type Date Debit Credit Balance

Opening Balance 436,368.47

436,368.47

Ending Balance 436,368.47

Type Date Memo Debit Credit Balance

Beginning 

Balance 1,042,259.43  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 510.00  1,041,749.43  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 14,162.00  1,027,587.43  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 80.00  1,027,507.43  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 144.64  1,027,362.79  

Bill Payment 

(Check) 11/16/2020 756.40  1,026,606.39  

Deposit 11/18/2020 4,487.50  1,031,093.89  

Journal Entry 11/30/2020

Quickbooks 

online 74.20  1,031,019.69  

Ending Balance $          4,487.50  $        15,727.24  1,031,019.69  

Type Date Debit Credit Balance

Opening Balance 732,751.04

Bill Pmt -Check 11/16/2020 19,194.97 713,556.07

Bill Pmt -Check 11/16/2020 7,055.00 706,501.07

Bill Pmt -Check 11/16/2020 935.00 705,566.07

Bill Pmt -Check 11/16/2020 5,821.35 699,744.72

Bill Pmt -Check 11/16/2020 1,580.00 698,164.72

Bill Pmt -Check 11/16/2020 109,685.45 588,479.27

Deposit 11/18/2020 78,137.93 666,617.20

Deposit 11/30/2020 2,796.50 669,413.70

Ending Balance 80,934.43 144,271.77 669,413.70

Escrow Fund

Park & Recreation Reserve Fund - Fund 19

State Aid Fund - Fund 35

Contribtuion Fund - Fund 36 (Recycling,Tree,Tanks)

 Page 9 of 10



 Hatfield Twp - General Fund

 Treasury Report
 As of November 30, 2020

Overall Totals

Debit Credit Balance

Opening Balance 7,628,662.32

Ending Balance 1,191,339.15 1,018,779.02 7,801,222.45

Respectfully Submitted David Bernhauser

 Page 10 of 10



















































































































 
 
 
 

November 12, 2020 

Attn: Aaron Bibro 

Hatfield Township | Township Manager 

1950 School Road | Hatfield, PA 19440 

Telephone: 215-855-0900 

Re: Cowpath/Orvilla Road Estimate #3 Recommendation for Payment  

Dear Mr. Bibro, 

Please allow this correspondence to serve as our recommendation of payment for work performed 
at the aforementioned project. This request is for Estimate #6, period ending on 10/31/ , 2020 in the 
amount of  $30,707.34. Attached is the back-up information for your records.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Michael Mazza 
Pennoni Associates, Inc. 
 

 

cc:  Project admin file 

Curtis Shugars, George Dunheimer 











 
 
 
 

December 10, 2020 

Attn: Aaron Bibro 

Hatfield Township | Township Manager 

1950 School Road | Hatfield, PA 19440 

Telephone: 215-855-0900 

Re: Cowpath/Orvilla Road Estimate #3 Recommendation for Payment  

Dear Mr. Bibro, 

Please allow this correspondence to serve as our recommendation of payment for work performed 
at the aforementioned project. This request is for Estimate #7, period ending on 11/30/ , 2020 in the 
amount of  $212,503.62. Attached is the back-up information for your records.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Michael Mazza 
Pennoni Associates, Inc. 
 

 

cc:  Project admin file 

Curtis Shugars, George Dunheimer 













 

{02972265;v4 } 1 

 

 

 

HATFIELD TOWNSHIP 

RESOLUTION #20-27 

 

CONDITIONAL FINAL SUBDIVISION  

AND LAND DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL FOR  

PULTE HOMES OF PA, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

 FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 491 FORTY FOOT ROAD, 

KNOWN AS THE BAUM TRACT,  HATFIELD TOWNSHIP, PA 

 

 WHEREAS, PULTE HOMES OF PA, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (the “Applicant”), 

is the equitable owner of property located at the 491 Forty Foot Road, consisting of 

approximately 99 acres, and which is further identified as Montgomery County Tax Parcel Nos. 

35-00-03763-00-9, 35-00-03766-00-6 and 35-00-05023-00-9 (the “Property”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Property is proposed to be subdivided into 321 age-restricted units, 

pursuant to the Multi Family - Elderly (MF-E) Zoning District; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Applicant received preliminary approval of plans prepared by Bohler 

Engineering, Inc. consisting of 118 sheets dated April 9, 2019, last revised September 20, 2019, 

as well as a “General Project Description and Stormwater Management Calculations” dated 

September 20, 2019 (collectively the “Plan”) pursuant to Resolution #19-28; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a revised Plan and application have been reviewed by the Township 

Consultants and have been found to be suitable for final approval, subject to the conditions set 

forth below. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Hatfield Township Board of 

Commissioners grants final approval of the Plan subject to the following conditions and 

requirements which shall be in addition to those contained in Resolution #19-28: 

   

1. The Applicant shall comply with all the provisions and conditions set forth in the 

October 26, 2020 and November 5, 2020 McMahon Associates, Inc. letters to 

Hatfield Township (incorporated herein by reference).   

2. The Applicant shall further comply with all provisions and conditions set forth in 

the December 10, 2020 CKS Engineers, Inc. letter and the December 10, 2020 

McCloskey and Faber, PC letter to Hatfield Township (incorporated herein by 

reference). 

3. The Applicant shall maintain the stormwater facilities in the PennDOT right-of-

way unless the Township agrees to an alternate arrangement the details of which 

shall be resolved in the Township’s land development agreement prior to 

construction. 

 



 

{02972265;v4 } 2 

 4. This approval is subject to the fulfillment of all of the foregoing conditions, in 

their entirety, and no permit shall be issued, nor shall any development take place 

on the Property, unless and until all such conditions are fulfilled.   

 

5. In the event execution of the Resolution is not delivered to the Township office by 

7:00 PM, Wednesday, December 16, 2020, it shall be deemed that the Applicant 

does not accept these conditions and any approvals conditioned upon the 

acceptance of the conditions are revoked and the application shall be considered 

denied for non-compliance with the Township Ordinances as detailed in the 

letters referenced above. 

 

DULY PRESENTED AND ADOPTED by the Hatfield Township Board of 

Commissioners, Montgomery County, Pennsylvania, in a public meeting held this _____ day of 

________________, 2020. 

 

HATFIELD TOWNSHIP 

ATTEST: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

______________________________ ______________________________ 

Aaron Bibro   Thomas C. Zipfel, President 

Township Manager 

 

 

ACCEPTED:    PULTE HOMES OF PA, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

 

By:___________________________ 

 

___________________________ 

 (Print Name and Title) 

 

Date: ___________________  

 











































































 

{02963831;v1 } 

HATFIELD TOWNSHIP 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

LEGAL NOTICE 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that on Wednesday, December 16, 2020, at 7:30 PM prevailing 

time at the Township Municipal Building, 1950 School Road, Hatfield, PA, 19440, the Hatfield 

Township Commissioners shall hold a Public Meeting to consider adoption of the following 

Ordinances titled: 

 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2021 HATFIELD TOWNSHIP BUDGET 

This ordinance authorizes the adoption of an annual budget for the Township, and desires 

to adopt the tentative budget as the 2021 budget for Hatfield Township. This ordinance also 

includes repealer, severability, effective date and enactment paragraphs. 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF HATFIELD TOWNSHIP AFFIXING THE  

PROPERTY TAX RATE FOR THE YEAR 2021 

 

This ordinance affixes the property tax rate for 2021 as follows:  A tax rate for general 

revenue purposes, the sum of 3.688 mills on each dollar of assessed valuation or the sum of 

36.88 cents on each $100.00 of assessed valuation.  A tax rate for debt purposes, the sum of .694 

mills on each dollar of assessed valuation or the sum of 6.94 cents on each $100.00 of assessed 

valuation.  A tax rate for fire apparatus, the sum of .62 mills on each dollar of assessed valuation 

or the sum of 6.20 cents on each $100.00 of assessed valuation.  A tax rate for park and 

recreation, the sum of .22 mills on each dollar of assessed valuation or the sum of 2.20 cents on 

each $100.00 of assessed valuation. This ordinance also includes a repealer, revisions, 

severability, failure to enforce not a waiver, effective date and enactment paragraphs.   

 

A copy of the full text of the proposed ordinances are available for review by the public, without 

charge, at the offices of The Reporter at 307 Derstine Avenue, Lansdale  PA and at  the Hatfield 

Township Municipal Building, 1950 School Road, Hatfield PA 19440 during normal business 

hours (a copy may be obtained for a charge not greater than the cost thereof) and at the 

Montgomery County Law Library, One Montgomery Plaza, 10th Floor, Norristown, PA  19404. 

If you are a person with a disability and wish to attend the above referenced public meetings, and 

require an auxiliary aid, service or other accommodation to participate, please contact the 

Township Manager at 215-855-0900 to discuss how the Township may best accommodate your 

needs. 

        HATFIELD TOWNSHIP 

        Aaron Bibro, Manager 

       Christen G. Pionzio, Solicitor 











I. VOLUNTEER BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 

North Penn Water Authority 
Bob Rodgers, 1727 Maple Avenue, Ward 2   
Term:  1/1/2020 – 12/31/2021 
 
Civil Service Commission 
Joe McGuriman, 2185 Rebecca Drive, Ward 2 
Term: 2021-2026 
 
EAC 
Christine Meager, 1880 Cindy Lane, At Large 
Term: 2021-2023 

 
Municipal Authority 
Donald Atkiss, 1675 Leon Drive, Ward 4 
Term: 2021-2025 
 
North Penn Health, Hospital and Education Authority 
Jeffrey Fasick, 922 Alexander Drive, Ward 3  
Term:  2021 – 2025 

 
Parks and Recreation 
Debra Rodgers, 1727 Maple Ave, Ward 2 
Term:  2021-2025 

 
Planning Commission 
Dean Mininger, 1400 Bellevue Lane, Ward 3 
Term: 2021-2024 

 
Shade Tree Commission 
Charles Arkens, 2690 Diamond Street, At Large- Ward 3 
Term: 2021-2025 

 
Vacancy Board Chairman 
David Kresge, 2247 MacArthur Dr, Ward 4  
Term:  2021 
 
Zoning Hearing Board 
Neil Brady, 1624 Harvest Moon Lane, Ward 3 
Term: 2021-2023 

 
 



RESOLUTION #20-28 
 

HATFIELD TOWNSHIP 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE HATFIELD TOWNSHIP BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

APPROVING THE SHARED USE TRAIL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH THE 
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

 WHEREAS, The parties have determined that a Shared Use Path consisting of a multi-use trail, 

with appurtenances, will be on a portion of existing Department right of way, located on State Route 

1058, Segment 0060, Offset 0040 to State Route 1058, Segment 0070, Offset 2117 in Hatfield 

Township, Montgomery County (“Trail”), and; 

 

WHEREAS, A Shared Use Path is defined as any paved or unpaved trail located within the 

highway right of way and physically separated from motorized vehicular traffic by an open space or 

barrier, designed, built, cleared, marked and maintained for use by pedestrians, pedacyclists, wheelchair 

users, and other non-motorized users, but not for use by any all-terrain vehicles or snowmobiles, and;  

  

WHEREAS, The Trail is being constructed to serve pedestrian and limited non-motorized 

traffic, including bicycles, strollers, skateboards, skates, and roller blades, as well as very limited 

motorized vehicles for emergency and maintenance purposes only. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Hatfield Township Board of Commissioners agrees 

to assume year-round responsibility for maintenance of the Trail upon the completion of 

construction.  

 

DULY PRESENTED AND ADOPTED by the Hatfield Township Board of 

Commissioners, Montgomery County, Pennsylvania, in a public meeting held this _____ day of 

___________________, 2020. 

 

Attest:      HATFIELD TOWNSHIP  

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

___________________________  By:        

Aaron Bibro, Township Manager         Thomas C. Zipfel, President 



 

1 

 

v.5.18.2020 

Effective Date __________________     Agreement No.: 
(Department will insert)     Federal ID No.: 1021568 

Municipality: Hatfield Twp. 
County: Montgomery 

 
SHARED USE TRAIL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 
This Shared Use Trail Maintenance Agreement (“Agreement”), is made by and between the 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (“Commonwealth), Department of Transportation (“Department”), 

and 

Hatfield Township, a municipality duly and properly formed under the laws of the 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, acting through its proper officials (“Trail Sponsor”).   

 

BACKGROUND  

 

The Department has jurisdiction and control over State-designated highways throughout the 

Commonwealth. 

 

 The parties have determined that a Shared Use Path consisting of a multi-use trail, with 

appurtenances, will be on a portion of existing Department right of way, located on State Route 1058, 

Segment 0060, Offset 0040 to State Route 1058, Segment 0070, Offset 2117  in Hatfield Township, 

Montgomery County (“Trail”). 

 

A Shared Use Path is defined as any paved or unpaved trail located within the highway right 

of way and physically separated from motorized vehicular traffic by an open space or barrier, designed, 

built, cleared, marked and maintained for use by pedestrians, pedacyclists, wheelchair users, and other 

non-motorized users, but not for use by any all-terrain vehicles or snowmobiles. 

  

The Trail is being constructed to serve pedestrian and limited non-motorized traffic, including 

bicycles, strollers, skateboards, skates, and roller blades, as well as very limited motorized vehicles for 

emergency and maintenance purposes only. 

 

 



 

2 

 

 The Trail Sponsor/Department has agreed to assume year-round responsibility for 

maintenance of the Trail upon the completion of construction.  

 

 The Department and Trail Sponsor wish to reduce their understanding of the terms and 

conditions for the work in this Agreement. The parties, intending to be legally bound, agree as 

follows:  

 

1. Trail Construction. Trail Sponsor/Department will, with its own forces or by contract, 

construct the Trail in accordance with plans entitled Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Department of 

Transportation Drawings for Construction of State Route 1058, Section HT2 in Montgomery County and attached 

as Exhibit A.  

 

2. Effective Date and Term of Agreement. This Agreement will become effective on the date 

that it is fully executed by the Trail Sponsor and the Department and all approvals required by the 

Commonwealth contracting procedures have been obtained. The effective date will be the date of the 

last signature. This Agreement shall remain in effect until terminated by either party as provided in 

this Agreement. 

 

3. Notice of Completion and Trail Acceptance. Trail Sponsor/Department will send written 

notice to the Department/Trail Sponsor when construction of the Trail is completed.  Following 

notice of completion by the Trail Sponsor/Department, the Trail Sponsor/Department will provide 

written notice to the Trail Sponsor/Department, within forty-five (45) days of receipt concerning 

whether the Trail Sponsor/Department accepts the Trail.  The Trail Sponsor/Department will not 

unreasonably refuse to accept the Trail, however if the Trail Sponsor does not accept the Trail, the 

Trail Sponsor will indicate the reasons for its position in the written notice. 

 

4. Trail Maintenance. Upon the Trail Sponsor’s/Department’s acceptance of the Trail and 

until such time as this Agreement may be terminated, the Trail Sponsor will, at its sole cost and 

expense, be responsible for all year-round maintenance and repair of the Trail, its appurtenances, and 

all Department right of way, except as set forth below, including but not limited to, any and all 

maintenance, repair and replacement of gates, bollards, plantings, planted areas, pedestrian cross 



 

3 

 

walks, pavement markings, Trail signing, local road signing, parking areas, trash removal, fencing, and 

any work zone traffic control.  

 

5. Trail Management. The Trail Sponsor, after consultation and approval by the Department, 

may hire a third party to manage the Trail. 

 

6. Financial Ability. The Trail Sponsor has provided satisfactory evidence to the Department 

of its ability to completely discharge construction, maintenance and financial duties imposed upon on 

it by this Agreement because it is a municipal corporation organized and operating under the laws of 

the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, vested with the powers to levy taxes and fees, and such power 

demonstrates its ability to discharge relevant duties under this Agreement. 

 
7. Termination. 

a.  Termination of Agreement by Trail Sponsor. The Trail Sponsor may not terminate 

this Agreement within the first five (5) years following the written notice of acceptance.  

Thereafter, the Trail Sponsor may terminate this Agreement upon ninety (90) days written 

notice to the Department. Once proper notice of termination has been received, the Trail 

Sponsor must barricade and secure access points to the Trail, if requested by the 

Department and to the satisfaction of the Department. 

 

b. Termination by Department.  

i.  Termination for Convenience. The Department reserves the right to revoke, 

rescind, or otherwise terminate this Agreement for any or no reason by giving the Trail 

Sponsor ninety (90) days written notice of termination, sent by certified mail. Upon 

expiration of the ninety (90) days’ notice by the Department, the Trail Sponsor’s 

responsibilities under this Agreement, except those pertaining to liability, whether 

financial, in tort or otherwise, will terminate.  

ii. Termination for Transportation-Related Purposes. The Department specifically 

reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in whole or in part under this section if 

the Department determines that any of the right of way upon which the Trail is located 

is needed for transportation-related purposes. The Department specifically reserves 

the right to terminate this Agreement in part under this Section if it decides to vacate 



 

4 

 

any portion of the right of way not necessary for the Trail or other transportation 

purposes.  The Department will do this only after consultation with the Trail Sponsor. 

iii. Termination for Cause. The Department reserves the right to terminate this 

Agreement due to violation of any provision in this Agreement. 

 

8. Required Permits and Approvals. The Trail Sponsor will obtain and pay for all federal, state 

or local approvals, permits or permissions of any nature required to operate the Trail and perform 

those responsibilities assumed by the Trail Sponsor.  The Department will assist the Trail Sponsor in 

obtaining any highway occupancy permits needed from the Department. 

 

9. Trail to be Open to the Public. The Trail Sponsor will keep the Trail open for use of the 

public, subject to reasonable rules and regulations concerning that use. 

 

10. Trail Maintenance and Failure to Maintain. If the Department determines that Trail repair, 

maintenance, or other required action is necessary, the Department will notify the Trail Sponsor in 

writing by overnight mail.  Within ten (10) days of the receipt by the Trail Sponsor of the Department’s 

written notice, the Trail Sponsor will acknowledge its intent to commence and perform the necessary 

work within a reasonable period of time.  In the event that the Trail Sponsor fails to commence the 

necessary work within a reasonable period of time or fails to execute said work diligently to completion 

within a reasonable period of time, the Department may perform said repair, maintenance or other 

necessary action at the Trail Sponsor’s sole cost and expense.  Failure by the Trail Sponsor to pay the 

Department within forty-five (45) days of receipt of an invoice for work performed by the Department 

will constitute a default, and the Department may terminate this Agreement as set forth above or 

pursue such other remedies as set forth in this Agreement or under applicable law. 

 

11. Interim Use of Right of Way. The Trail is an interim use of right of way until said right of 

way is required for transportation related purposes. The Trail will not be considered a resource – 

recreational or otherwise – under the National Environmental Policy Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321, et. al, 

Section 4(f) of the U.S. Department of Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. § 303 and 23 C.F.R.§ 774.11(h), 

or the Pennsylvania Administrative Code, 71 P.S. § 512. 

 



 

5 

 

12. Scope of Trail Use.  Trail use is limited to pedestrian and limited non-motorized traffic, 

including bicycles, strollers, skateboards, skates, and roller blades, and for very limited motorized 

vehicles for emergency and maintenance purposes only. 

 

13. Appurtenances to the Trail. The Trail Sponsor may add appurtenances to the Trail, but only 

upon consultation with, and after the approval of, the Department. 

 

14. Necessary Ordinances and Resolutions. The Trail Sponsor will enact or adopt all 

ordinances and resolutions as may be necessary to affect the purposes of this Agreement. 

 

15. Occupancy of Right of Way. The Department, in executing this Agreement, does not waive 

any of its powers or rights to grant a co-existing occupancy of the Trail and its appurtenances. 

 

16. Rights for Future Change. The Department, in executing this Agreement, does not waive 

any of its powers or rights to require the future change in operation, removal, relocation, or proper 

maintenance of any occupancy to or access within the right of way. 

 
17. Liability. The Trail Sponsor will be principally liable to the Department for any failure to 

comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  The principal liability of the Trail Sponsor 

to the Department will not preclude the Trail Sponsor or the Department from bringing any action 

against the Trail Sponsor’s contractor, subcontractor, engineer, architect, or any other person involved 

in the design, construction, or maintenance of the Trail and its appurtenances. 

 

18. Insurance. Upon execution of this Agreement, the Trail Sponsor will obtain and keep in full 

force and effect during the term of this Agreement adequate general liability and property damage 

insurance covering any injury, death or property damage resulting in any way from use of the Trail 

and the Trail Sponsor’s performance of or failure to perform any responsibilities under this 

Agreement.   Such insurance will provide coverage in the minimum amounts of two hundred fifty 

thousand dollars ($250,000.00) per person and one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for 

bodily injury, including death, and one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for property 

damage.  The insurance must be occurrence-based and the property and general liability coverage must 

name the Department as an additional insured on the policy.  Failure to maintain the insurance 



 

6 

 

coverage required by this section during the term of this Agreement will be cause for termination of 

this Agreement. 

 

19. Indemnification. The Trail Sponsor shall indemnify and (if requested) defend the 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the Department, the Federal Highway Administration and all of 

their officers, agents and employees from all suits, actions or claims of any character, name or 

description, including, but not limited to, those in eminent domain or otherwise relating to title to real 

property, brought for or on account of any injuries to or damages received or sustained by any person, 

persons or property by or on account of any act or omission by the Trail Sponsor, its contractors, 

their officers, agents and employees as a result of use of the Trail and the obligations assumed by the 

Trail Sponsor under this Agreement. 

   

20. Standard Commonwealth Contracting Provisions. The Trail Sponsor will comply, and will 

cause its consultant(s) and contractor(s), if any, to comply with the current versions of the provisions 

set forth below. As used in these provisions, the term “Contractor” means the Trail Sponsor:  

a. Contractor Integrity Provisions, attached as Exhibit B; 

b. Contractor Responsibility Provisions, attached as Exhibit C; 

c. Provisions Concerning the Americans with Disabilities Act, attached as Exhibit D; 

d. Provisions concerning Nondiscrimination and Sexual Harassment, attached as Exhibit E; 

and 

e. The Pennsylvania Right-to-Know Law provisions, attached as Exhibit F.  

 

21. Successors and Assigns. All covenants and obligations of the parties under this Agreement 

will bind their successors and assigns, whether or not expressly assumed by such successors and 

assigns.  

 

22. Compliance. The Trail Sponsor will be responsible for causing its employees, agents, and 

contractors to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
23. Debarred Contractors. The Trail Sponsor shall not employ or utilize, for any work related 

to the Trail, a contractor, subcontractor or individual debarred by the Department. 67 Pa. Code 

§ 457.13.  



 

7 

 

 

24. Assignment. The Agreement may not be assigned by the Trail Sponsor, either in whole or in 

part, without the written consent of the Department.   

 
25.  Independence of the Parties. The parties understand by and between themselves that 

nothing contained in this Agreement is intended or will be construed to, in any respect, create or 

establish the relationship of partners between the Trail Sponsor and the Department, or as constituting 

the Department as the representative or general agent of the Trail Sponsor for any purpose. 

 

26. Choice of Law. This Agreement will be governed by and interpreted and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (without regard to any conflict of 

laws provisions) and the decisions of Pennsylvania courts. The Trail Sponsor consents to the 

jurisdiction of any court of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and any federal courts in 

Pennsylvania, waiving any claim or defense that such forum is not convenient or proper. The Trail 

Sponsor acknowledges that any such court will have in personam jurisdiction over it and consents to 

service of process in any manner authorized by Pennsylvania law. 

 

27. Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  If any phrase, clause, sentence 

or provision of this Agreement is declared to be contrary to the Constitution of Pennsylvania or of 

the United States or of the laws of the Commonwealth the applicability thereof to any government, 

agency, person or circumstance is held invalid, the validity of the remainder of this Agreement and 

the applicability thereof to any government, agency, person or circumstance will not be affected.   

 

28. Rights Reserved. Any remedies granted to the Department under this Agreement are not 

exclusive and do not preclude any other remedy the Department may otherwise have. 

 
29. No Waiver. Either party may elect not to enforce its rights and remedies under this 

Agreement in the event of a breach by other parties of any term or condition of this Agreement. In 

any event, the failure by either party to enforce its rights and remedies under this Agreement will not 

be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term or condition of this 

Agreement. 

 



 

8 

 

30. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. The parties to this Agreement understand that this 

Agreement does not create or intend to confer any rights in or on persons or entities not a party to 

this Agreement. 

 
31. Titles Not Controlling. Titles of sections are for reference only and will not be used to 

construe the language in this Agreement. 

 

32. Notice Procedure. All notices and reports arising out of, or from, the provisions of this 

Agreement will be in writing and given to the parties at the address provided below, either by overnight 

mail, regular mail, or delivery in person, or to such other person or address as the parties may provide 

to each other in writing. The parties may agree to exchange information by email.  

If to the Department: 

Michael Rebert, P.E. 
PennDOT District 6-0 
7000 Geerdes Boulevard 
King of Prussia, PA 19146 
Fax: 610-205-6915 
mrebert@pa.gov 

 

If to the Trail Sponsor 

Aaron Bibro 
Hatfield Township 
1950 School Road 
Hatfield, PA 19440 
Fax 215-855-0243 
abibro@hatfield.org 

 
 

 

33. Integration and Merger. Upon execution, this document, together with all exhibits and 

attachments annexed to it, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and completely 

expresses their intent. All prior or contemporaneous agreements are hereby merged into this 

document. No amendment or modification of this document will be valid unless it is in writing and 

duly executed and approved by the parties.  

 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.] 



 

9 

 

The parties have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the date of the last signature 
affixed below.  
 
ATTEST:      Hatfield Township 
  
 
____________________________________ BY_________________________________ 
       Title:                                          Date                  Title:            Date        
 
 
If a Corporation, the President or Vice-President must sign and the Secretary, Treasurer, 
Assistant Secretary or Assistant Treasurer must attest; if a sole proprietorship, only the Owner 
must sign; if a partnership, only one Partner need sign; if a limited partnership, only the 
General Partner must sign.  If a Municipality, Authority or other entity, please attach a 
resolution. 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE--FOR DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 
          

 
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 

                                                                        DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
      BY____________________________________                               
           Deputy Secretary of                   Date             
           Transportation 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY  PRELIMINARILY APPROVED: 
AND FORM: 
 
BY__________________________  BY____________________________________ 
      for Chief Counsel              Date       Assistant Counsel                         Date 
 
 
BY__________________________     
      Deputy Attorney               Date           
      General                                                 
                 
BY__________________________       
      Deputy General                 Date             
      Counsel       
       
            



 

{01151677;v1} 

__________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                              

MONTGOMERY COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
NORTH PENN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  

: 
 : 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
 

 
Docket No. 2019-26327 
 
Assessment Appeal 
 
Property Location:  1100 Schwab Road 
 
Tax Parcel No.: 35-00-09961-00-3 

 
      vs. 
 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY BOARD OF 
ASSESSMENT APPEALS, et al.      

 
ORDER 

 
AND NOW, this __________ day of ____________________ 2020, it is hereby 

ORDERED and DECREED that the terms and conditions of the attached Stipulation to Settle are 
accepted, adopted and incorporated herein, as terms and conditions of a binding Court Order. 

IT IS FURTHER Ordered and Decreed that the Montgomery County Board of Assessment 
Appeals shall make the appropriate increases in assessments as agreed to in the attached 
Stipulation to Settle, that the taxing authorities shall send out any tax bills as a result of the 
increase in assessments, and that the Prothonotary shall mark the above-captioned action 
“Settled, Discontinued and Ended.” 

        BY THE COURT: 

       ___________________________________ 
                      J. 
 
Copies of the above Order mailed on ___________________ to:  
Michael L. Barbiero, Esquire 
Alexander M. Glassman, Esquire 
Samantha Magee, Esquire 
Brian O. Phillips, Esquire 
Kurt Lieberman 
Christen G. Pionzio, Esquire 
Court Administration – Civil 
 
____________________________________ 
Judicial Secretary  



 

{01151677;v1} 

RUDOLPH CLARKE, LLC 
BY: Michael L. Barbiero, Esquire 
Attorney I.D. No. 82933  
BY: Alexander M. Glassman, Esquire 
Attorney I.D. No. 314530 
7 Neshaminy Interplex, Suite 200 
Trevose, PA 19053 
215.633.1890       
aglassman@rudolphclarke.com       Attorneys for Appellant,  
mbarbiero@rudolphclarke.com     North Penn School District  

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA 
CIVIL ACTION - LAW 

 
NORTH PENN SCHOOL DISTRICT  : NO. 2019-26327 
       : 
       : REAL ESTATE 
       : ASSESSMENT APPEAL 
 v.      : 
       : 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY BOARD OF  : 
ASSESSMENT APPEALS, et al.   : PARCEL NO. 35-00-09961-00-3 
        
        

SETTLEMENT STIPULATION  
 

Parties 
 

1. Appellant is the North Penn School District. 

2. Appellee is the Montgomery County Board of Assessment Appeals. 

3. Intervenors are the Property Owner, Schwab Road BSD LLC, Montgomery County and 
Hatfield Township. 

Property 
 

4. The Property, which consists of approximately 18.98 acres is located on 1100 Schwab 
Road, within Hatfield Township, and is further identified as Tax Parcel No. 35-00-09961-
00-3 (“Property”).  

5. The Property’s current assessment is 5,600,000.   

Appeal 
 

6. On or about July of 2019, the District filed an assessment appeal with the Board of 
Assessment Appeals challenging the Property’s amount of $5,600,000 for the taxable 
year beginning January 1, 2020. 



 

{01151677;v1} 

7. On October 10, 2019, after conducting a hearing on the Appeal, the Board issued a 
“Notice of No Change in Assessment” determination.  

8. On November 8, 2019, the District appealed to this Court from the Board’s “Notice of No 
Change in Assessment” determination.  

Settlement Terms 
 

9. Based upon the risks and costs of litigation, the parties have decided it is in their best 
interests to settle this matter based upon the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Stipulation. 

10. Accordingly, the parties, intending to be legally bound, and to bind their respective 
clients, agree to the following settlement terms: 

2020 Assessment: Effective January 1, 2020 for County and Township tax years and July 
1, 2020 for the School District tax year, the assessment on the Property shall be increased 
from its assessment of 5,600,000 to 5,977,620.  Applying the County’s 2020 common 
level ratio of .493 this assessment results in an indicated market value of $12,124,990.    

2021 Assessment: Effective January 1, 2021 for County and Township tax years and July 
1, 2021 for the School District tax year, the assessment on the Property shall be set at 
$5,686,630.  Applying the County’s 2021 common level ratio of .469 this assessment 
results in an indicated market value of $12,125,010.   

11. The Property’s assessment shall remain at 5,686,630 for each subsequent tax year after 
2021, and tax bills will be issued in accordance with this assessment, until a change as 
otherwise permitted by Pennsylvania law has been made.   

12. Based upon the increased assessments established by this Stipulation, all counsel agree 
that additional amounts are owing to the taxing authorities as follows: 

NORTH PENN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

Tax Year 
Old 

Assessment 
New 

Assessment 

 
Increase 

 

Millage 
Rate 

Amounts 
Owing 

2020 5,600,000 5,977,620 377,620 .0267742 $10,110.47 
Total $10,110.47 

 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

 

Tax Year 
Old 

Assessment 
New 

Assessment 

 
Increase 

 

Millage 
Rate 

Amounts 
Owing 

2020 5,600,000 5,977,620 377,620 .003459 $1,306.19 
Total $1,306.19 

 



 

{01151677;v1} 

 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE (MCCC) 

 

Tax Year 
Old 

Assessment 
New 

Assessment 

 
Increase 

 

Millage 
Rate 

Amounts 
Owing 

2020 5,600,000 5,977,620 377,620 .00039 $147.27 
Total $147.27 

 
HATFIELD TOWNSHIP 

 

Tax Year 
Old 

Assessment 
New 

Assessment 

 
Increase 

 

Millage 
Rate 

Amounts 
Owing 

2020 5,600,000 5,977,620 377,620 .005221 $1,971.55 
Total $1,971.55 

 

13. These calculations are subject to verification by the tax collector and/or treasurers of each 
taxing authority and their determinations are final. 

14. The parties agree that the Property Owner will remit all underpayments set forth in 
Paragraph 12, as verified by the tax collector and/or business manager of each taxing 
authority in accord with Paragraph 13, directly to the taxing authorities within 30 days of 
receipt of bills from the applicable taxing authorities; the Property Owner shall forward 
these payments directly to the taxing authorities at the following addresses:   

District Payment:  
North Penn School District 
Attn: Stephen B. Skrocki 
Director of Business Administration 
401 E. Hancock Street 
Lansdale, PA 19446 
 
County and MCCC Payments (separate checks): 
Montgomery County 
Attn: William Caldwell  
1 Montgomery Plaza, 6th Floor 
PO Box 311 
Norristown, PA 19404 
 
Municipality Payment:  
Hatfield Township 
Attn:  Aaron Bibro 
Township Manager 
1950 School Road 
Hatfield, PA 19440 



 

{01151677;v1} 

 
15. That based on the increase in assessments established by this Stipulation and Order of 

Settlement, all counsel agree that the Taxing Authorities are entitled to receive 
underpayments from the Taxpayer. 

16. That upon Court approval of this Stipulation and Order of Settlement, the Taxing 
Authorities shall forward bills to the Taxpayer for the amount of underpayments as set 
forth in this Stipulation, if any. 

17. Any tax bills will be verified by the tax collector and/or treasurers of each taxing 
authority and their determinations are final. 

18. This Stipulation contains the statement of each and every term and provision agreed to by 
all parties. No other promises, representations or other inducements, oral or written, have 
been made to any of the other parties in exchange for this Stipulation. 

19. The attorneys entering into this Stipulation represent that they and their clients have full 
authority to enter into this Stipulation and they have been authorized by their clients to 
enter into this Stipulation. 

20. This Stipulation may be executed in one or more counterparts and by facsimile or 
electronic mail, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which when taken 
together shall constitute a single agreement.   

21. Each party shall bear its own costs as incurred.  

22. This Stipulation shall be binding upon, and inures to the benefit of the undersigned, their 
clients, successors, grantees, heirs and assigns. 

 

 
 

*** 
 

[Signatures on Next Page] 
  




	December 16, 2020 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting Minutes – November 18, 2020
	Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting Minutes – November 4, 2020
	Police Report – November
	Treasurer’s Report – December
	Finance Report - December 2020 - Paid/Unpaid
	Finance Report - December 2020 - Budget vs Actual
	CKS Review - 2801 Township Line Road - Hatfield Industrial Center
	CKS Review - Pulte Homes
	Estimate No.6 Cowpath - Orvilla
	Estimate 6
	Estimate No.7 Cowpath - Orvilla
	Estimate 7
	Resolution #20-27 -- Pulte Homes Land Development Final Approval
	2021 Budget Packet
	Ad for Tax Ordinance and Budget for 2021
	Ordinance #693 -- 2021 Hatfield Township Budget Adoption
	Ordinance #694 -- Establishment of 2021 Taxes – No Increase
	VOLUNTEER BOARD APPOINTMENTS 2021
	Resolution #20-28 -- Trail Maintenance Agreement – 309 Connector Road
	Shared Use Path Agreement Hafield
	Real Estate Tax Appeal Settlement Agreement - 1100 Schwab Rd-signed

